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. IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No. 11-14063-CIV-MOORE/L YNC:E-I 

U.S. COMMODITIES FUTURE 
TRADING COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

DAVID L. ORTIZ, OOYEP INTERNATIONAL, 
INC., ROYAL RETURNS, INC., 

Defendants, 

LOREDANI\ ORTIZ, and N~TURAL HEALTH 
MATTERS, L.L.C. 

Relief DefendantS. . 

-----------------------------------------------------~' 
FILED UNDER SEAL1 

STATUTORY RES1RAINING ORDER 

T-160 P.004 F-496 

Having read the Complaint for ,Injunctive and ·other Equitable Relief, the Plaintiff's 

.Motion for an ex parte Statutory Restraining Order, the Memorandwn in Support of Plaintiff's 

Motion fC?r a Statutory Restraining Order~ the Declaration of Joy McConnack, and the 

Attachments theret?, and all other papers filed herein by the Plaintiff, Commodity Futures Trading 

Commission ("CFTC"), 

THE COURT FINDS: 

1. The Court has juris diction over the parties and over the subject ~atter of this case. 

2. Section 6c(a) of the Com1nodity Exchange Act ("Act"), 7 U.S.C. § 13a-l(a), as 

atrlended. by the Food, Conservation, and Energy Act of 2008, Pub. L. No. 110-2461 Title XIII 

1 Because receipt of this Order may frustrate the purpose Qf the referred Orders, no 
notice of the referrals shall be provided to the Defendants. . . 
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(the CFTC Reauthorization Act o~2008 (''CRA")), §§ 13101-13204, ~22 Statl6Sl (enacted June 

1 ~' 2008), and the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refonn and Consumer Protection Act of201 0~ Pub. L. 

No. 111-203, Title Vll (the Wall Street Transparency and Accountability Act of 2.010}, §§ 701-

774> 124 Stat. 1376 (enacted July 21> ~010}, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 1 et seq., authorizes this 

Court to enter an ex parre statutory restraining order against Defendants David L. Ortiz ("Ortiz~'), 

Goyep Interoational, Inc. ("'Goyep") and Royal Returns, Inc. ("Royal Returns") and Relief 

Defendants Loredana Ortiz ("L. Ortiz") and Natural Health Matters, L.L.C. ("Natmal Health"). 

3. V ~nue lies properly within this District pl.ll'suant to Sections 6c( e) of the Act, 7 

u.s.c.· § I3a-l(e). 

4. It appears to the satisfaction of the Court that there i~ good cause to believe that the 

DefendantS, have engaged, are engaging in ~d are about to engage in violations of 

§§ 4(b)(a)(2)(A)- (C) of the Ac~ 7 U.S. C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(A)- (C), and that Defendants Ortiz and 

Goyep, with respect to acts occurring on or after October 18, 2~ 10, have engaged in violations of 

Sections 5.3(a)(3)(i) E1nd 5.3(~)(3)(ii) of the Regulations, to be codified at 17 C.F.R. 5.3(a)93)(i) 

and 5.3(a)(3)(ii). 

s~ There is good cause to believe that Relie~Defendants, L. Ortiz and Na~ 1--lealth 

("ReliefDefendants,), re~ived ftm.ds and/or property as a result of the Defendants' unlawful 

conduct and have been unjustly enriched.thereby. The R~liefDefendants have no legitimate 

entitlement to or interest in all of the funds and/or property received as a result of the Defendants' 

unlawful cond1.1ct. 

6. There is good cause to believe that immediate and irreparable damage to the 

Court~s ability to grant effective final relief for investors in the form of monetary redress will 

occur from the sale, transfer~ assignment, or oth~r disposition by Defendants or .Relief Defendants 
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of assets or records unless Defendants and Relief Defendants are immediately restrained and 

enjoined by order of the Court, and accordingly there is good cause to issue this Order. 

F-486 

7. There. is good cause to believe further that forex customers may be cheated and 

defrauded and that f:mmediate and irreparable damage to the Court's ability to. grant effective fmal 

relief for forex customers in the foxm of monetary redress will occur from the destruction of 

records unless tbe Defendants and Relief Defendants are inunediately restrained and enjo~ed by 

Order of this Court and, accordingly, there is good cause to issue this Order. 
. . . 

8. It further appears to the satisfaction of the Court that th.ls is a proper case for 

granting a statutory restraining order· to preserve the status quo, protect public customers 

from loss and damage!) and··enable the CFTC to fulfill its· statutory duties. . 

ORDER 

DEFINITIONS 

For the pmposes of this Order, th~ following definitions apply:· 

9. "Assets" means any legal or equitable interest in, right to, or claim to, any real.or 

personal property, including. but not limit~d to chattels, goods, instroments, equipment, fixtures, 

general intangibles, effects, leaseholds, mail or other deliveries, inventory, checks, notes, accounts 

including bank accounts and accounts at fmancial institutions, brokerage finns or futures 

commissions merchants, credits,. ieceivables_!l lines of credit, contracts including spot and futures 

contracts, insurance pqlicies, and all cash~ wherever located .. 

1 0. "Document" is synonymous in meaning and equal in scope to the usage of the term 

in Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 34(a), a;nd includes, writings, drawings,. graphs, charts, 

photographs, au~o and video recordings, computer records, and other data compilations from 

which information can be obtained and translated;J if necessary, through detection devices into 

3 

Received Time F.eb. 24. · 2011 1:40PM No. 0951 



FSS-24-2011 01:45PM FROM-JUDGE MOORE 3055235169 T-160 P.007/014 F-486 

r.easonably usable fo1m. A draft or non-identical copy is a separate document within the meaning 
. . 

of the tenn. 
0 

11. . "Defendants" means David L. Ortiz, Goyep International, Inc. and Royal Returns, 0 

Inc., and any person insofar as he or 0 she is acting in the capacity as an officer, agent, servant, 

employee or attorney of anr of·the Defendants, individually or jointly, and any person who 

receives actual notice of this Order by personal service or otheiWise, including federal Express or 

other conunercial overnight service, email or facsimile. 

12. "Relief Defendants" means Loredana Orti~ and Natural Health Matters, L.L.C.~ and 

any person insofar as he or she is acting in the capacity as an officer, agent, servant, employee or 

attorney of any of the Relief Defendants, individually or jointly, and any person who receives 

actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, including Federal Express or 9ther 

0 commercial overnight service, email or facsimile. 

RELIEF GRANTED 

STATUTORY RESTRAINING ORDER 

I. ASSET FREEZE 

IT IS ORDERED that Defendants and Relief Defendants, aud their agents, servants, 

employees, successors, as·signs, attorneys and all persons insofar as they are acting in active 

concert ot· participation with them who receive acl:ual notice of this Otder by personal service or 

otherwise, including ·Federal Express or other commercial.overo.ight service, email or facsimile, is 

restrained and enjoined from directly or indirectly dissipating, selling, alienating, liquidating, 

encumbering, pledging, leasing, loaning, assigning, concealing, convening or otherwise disposing 

of any cash, cashier's checks, funds, assets or other property, wherever located, including funds, 

.4 
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P.roperty or assets· held outside the United States, except as ordered by the. Court. The assets 

affected by ~s Paragraph shall include all of those within the . custody, control or actual or 

constructive possession of Defendan~ or Relief Defendants, including, but not limited tQ, all 

funds, personal property, money or securities held in Defendants' or Relief Defendants' name, all 

funds on deposit in any safety deposit box, financial institution, futures cqm.mission merc~ant 

("FCMn), custodian, brokerage firm, bank or savings and-loan account held by, undc~ the actual or 

constructive control, or in the :name of Defendants or Relief Defendants, all funds or propeny of 

Defendants' investors, wherever located, whether hel~ in the name of the Defendants or Relief 
. . . 

Defendants, individually or jointly~ or any ~ther entity owned or controlled by Defendants or 

Relief Defendants, o.r held on behalf of the D~fendants or Relief Defendants. The assets affected 

by this Paragraph shall include both existing assets and assets acquired after the effe~tive date of 

this Order, as well as accounts held at the institutions specifically identified below. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, pending further Order· of this Court, any bal)k; fmancial 

or brokerage finn, futures co~issim1 merchant, £?I business entity, or person that holds, co~trols, 

or maintains custody of any funds, asset~ or other property of Defendants or Relief Defendants, or · 

· has hel~ controlled,. or maintained custody of any funds, assets or other property of Defendants .or 

Relief Defendants, including, but not 1imited, to Bank of America, N.A., Errade Securities, L.L.C., . . . 

JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., ~teractive Broker~, L.L.C., ODL Securiti~s, Ltd., PFG Best, MB 

Trading Futures, Inc., TD Ameritra~e, Inc., and who receive notice of this Order by any means, 

including facsi11_1ile, electronic mail, United Parcel Service, ~ederal Express or other commercial 

overnight service, shall: 

A. Prohibit O~feildants and Relief Def~ndants and any other person from withdrawing, 
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removing, assigning, transferring, pledging, encumbering, disbursing~ dissipating, converting, 

selling or othe~se disposing of any such asset except as directed by furt11er order of the Court; 

B. Deny Defen~ants and Relief Defendants, and all other perso~s access to any safe 

deposit box that is: 

1. titled in the name of Defendants or Relief Defendants, either individually or 

jointly; or maintained by nominee~ of Defendants or Relief Defendants; or 

2. otherwise subject to access by the Defendants or Relief Defendants; 

C. Pr~vid.e counsel for the CFTC within five (5) business days of receiving· a copy of 

this Order, a statement setting forth: 

1. the identification numb~r of each such account or asset titled in the name of 

Defendants or Relief Defendants> individually or jointly, or l1eld on behalf 

of, or for the benefit, of the Defendants or Relief Defendants; 

2. the balance of each such a~count, or a description of the narure and value 

of such asset as of the close ofbusiness on the day on which this Order is 

served, and, if the account or other asset has b~en clos·ed or removed, the 

date closed or removed, the total funds removed in order to close the 

account, and· the name of the person or entity to whom such account or 

other asset was remitted; and 

3. the identification of any safe deposit box that is either titled in the name of 
. . . 

Defendants o~ Relief Defendants, individually or jointly, or is otherwise 

subject to a9cess by the Pefendants or Relief Defendants; · 

D. Upon the request by the CFTC, promptly provide the CFTC with copies of all 

'records or other documentation pertaining to such account or asset, including, but not .limited to, 
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originals or copies of account applications, account statements, signature cards, checks7 drafts, 

deposit tickets, wire transfers to and from the accolUlts, transfers to and from the accounts, all 

other debit and credit instruments or slips, currency transaction reports, 1 099 forms, and safe 

· deposit box logs; and 

E. Cooperate with all reasonable requests of the CFTC relating to implementation of 

this Order,.including produ~ing records related t~ Defendants' and Relief Defendants' ~ccounts 

and businesses. 

IT. PROIDBTTTON OF DESTRUCTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants and Relief Defendants and their agents, 

servants, employees, successors, ~ssigns, attorneys and all persons insofar as they axe acting in 

active concert· or participation with them who ·receive actual notice of tlus Order by personal 

service or othenyise, including facsimile, email or Federal Expres~ or other commercial overnight 
. . 

service, are restr~ined and enjoined from directly or indirectly destroyin~t mutilating, concealing; 

altering or di.sposing of, in any manner, any of the books and records, docwnents, correspondence, 

brochures, manuals, electronically stored data, tape records or oth~r ·property of DefendantS and 

Relief Defendants, wherever located, including all such records concerning the Defendants' and 

Relief Defendants, business operations. 

III. ACCESS TO AND INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants and Relief Defendants must penn.it 

representatives of the Plaintiff CFTC to immediately inspect the books, records and other . 

electronically stored data, tape recordi.tigs, and .other docwnents of the Defendants· and Relief 

· Defendants and their agents, including all such records of Defendants' and Relief Defendants' 
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business operations, wherever they are situated and whether they are in the possession of the 

Defendants or Relief Defendants or others and to copy said do~uments, data, and records either on 
. . . . 

or off the premises where they may .be situated and. whether they are in the possession of the . 
. . 

Defendants or Relief Defendants or otllers, and to copy said documents, data and records, either on 

or off the premise~ where they may be situated. 

IV. SERVICE OF ORDER and ASSISTANCE OF U.S. MARSHAL'S SERVICE 

IT IS 'FliRTHER ORDERED that copies of this Order may be .served ·by any means, 

including facsimile transmission, electronic mail, United Parcel SeiVice. and Federal Express or 

other commercial overnight service, upon any financial institution, FCM, bank, brokerage f1I1ll ~r 

other entity ·or person that may have possession~· custody, or control C?f any documents or assets of 

the ·Defendants or Relief Pefendants, or that may be subject to any provision of this Order. Joy 

McConnack and John Wilson, employees of the CFTC, are hereby special1y appointed to serve . . 

. process, including this Order and all other papers in this cause . 

. IT IS FURT:I.JER ORDERED that the United States Mar~hals Service is directed to assist 

the CFTC with service of process, including the summons and Complaint and all other papers in . . 

this case, as well as assist the CFTC ~th taking control and custody of the assets, records and 
.. . 

business premises of Defendants and Relief Defendants. 

V. SERVICE ON THE COMMISSION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendants shall serve all pleadings, conesp·ondence 

. or notices required by this Order, and other materials on the CFTC by delivering a copy to, Susan 

B .. Padove,· Senior Trial Attorney or Elizabeth M. Streit, 'Trial Team Leader, Division of . . . 

Enforcement, Co~odity Futures Trading Commission, 525 W. Monroe, Suite 1100, Chicago, 

Dlinois 60661. 
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VI. COURT MAINTAINS JURlSDICI'ION 

IT IS FURTHER «?RDERED that this Sta~tory Restraining Ord~r ·shall remain in fu~l 

force and effect until. further Order. of this Co.urt~ upon application, notice and an opportu~ty to be 

heard, and that this Court retains jurisdiction of this ma~er for all purposes . 

. DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers at Miami:. Florida, this~f'l4day of February;, 2011. 

:MitHAEL MOORE 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 

cc: Magistrate Judge Frank J. Lynch, Jr. 
Susan Padovell Senior Trial Attorney 
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